Euro-Canadian Cultural Summary

In the early seventeanth century, Franch explorers such as Samuel de Champlain and
Etienne Briilé, sncountered groups of people speaking an Algonquian language along the
Ottawa River Valiey. These were the Weskarin|, Onotchataronon, Kichasipirinl,
Matouweskarini, and Otaguotouemin Algonqulans (Trigger 1876:279). The loossly aligned
First Nations groups subsisted on hunting, flshing and gathering and undertook limited
horticulture. Champlain first met the Algonquians In 1603 at the trading centra of
Tadoussac near the mouth of the St. Lawrence River (Hessel 1863:14), Searching for the
Northwest Passage in 1813, Champlaln entered Algonquin terttory and explored the
mmﬂymmmummummmummmﬂu
Kichesipirinl lived on Momson's Island and controlled the portages at the base of
Allumette Lake. From thelr strategic location, the Kichesipirni collected tolis from all
H‘nnl:hhﬁdﬁhﬂﬁhnmhhﬂh!nnhm%ﬂﬂhﬂﬂﬂmm Ottawa and
Ojibway (Hessel 1975{1881):3),

There was litle game In Huron country and the principal food of the Nation was maize
{Huhmfﬂ?ﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂhﬂmnmmmptulmmmmm
tamily cultivated a portion until the soll was exhausted and no longer fertile and firewood
became scarce, Once this occurred, the village was abandoned and a new one was built
in & different area. Some of the Huron villages ware laft open, but others located closer to
the Iroquals Nations, were fortified by a trench, earthen bank and woodan pallsade.

Such was the Huron Ifestyle when Champlain reached their territory in 1615, Upon his
return from France, Champlain brought with him four friars of the Recollets - one of the
mmmmmmm-ummmme the
First Nations groups of the county. One of thase F , Josaph Le Caron,
Journeyed into Huron county with Champlain, likely landing somewhare on the northeast
shore of what is now known as Tiny Township in Simcoe County.

Joseph Le Caron huiha:ﬂdmﬂnnnfmmﬂmﬂmnimmmpmuhlhamh
Huron Nation. His decision to live among the Attignacuantans Huron was made due to his
desire to leamn thelr language so as to more effectively preach the word of God. La Caron
Ieft Huron territory after a few years but continued his misslonary work In New France until
the capitulation of New France to England in 1626. Le Caron was the first of many
Catholic missionary priests to inhabit and convert First Nations peoples.

The 1640s was a time of great upheaval in the region. The introduction of European trade
had turned skirmishes between the Huron and lroquois Nations Into a ruthless struggle for
survival. Reiding parties of roquols became commonplacs In Huron country. They would
lie In ambush along river routes, attack and carry off rich Huron flotilkas; the travel routes
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wera exiramaly dangerous placas (Jury and Jury 1954). Surprise aftacks, massacres,
captura and torture occurred more and mora fraquently In Huron country. In combination
with European diseases, this dramatically reduced the population of the Huron Mation by
tha 16508. Currant astimates posit a pre-epldamic population of 22,000 compared 1o
10,000 by the end of the 1650s (Heidenrich 1071:368).

Unfortunately, given the dedication fo archasological and historical research of the Huron,
a paucity of information exists for the period between 1650 and the Euro-Canadian
sefttemant of Simeoe County, However, given the close proximity and friendly relations the
Huron had with the Algonguian speaking groups to the north, it s fikely that thesa groups,
such as the Ojlbway, moved Into the reglon. In support of this theory, thera was a Franch
mission to the Algonquian spaaking groups around Orillia at this time (Huntar 1988 [1808):

10).

Eurc-Canadian Settlement of Simcoe County. Government land surveys of tha vast
inmtarior of Upper Canada bagan as a military endeavour to find watar or an ovariand route
through the Huron Tract to bypass the vulnerable lower Great Lakes. Lieutenant Hanry
Briscoa of the Royal Engineers crossed by the Madawaska Highlands from Georglan Bay
to the Ottawa River in 1826, and has the distinction of belng the first Euro-Canadian
recorded to pass within the confines of the future Algonquin Park area (Briscoe 1826 in
Whatt 1971). Briscoe concluded that a sultable canal route was not present through the
Canadian Shield, but others, notably Charles Shirreff, believed that the interior could be
sottled by farmers and serviced by a canal (Wyatt 1971:4). Alexander Shirrefl, the son of
Charles, search for a possible canal route across the uplands in 1828 (Shirmeff 1831 in
Whyatt 1871). In his subsequent report, Alexander considaered hardwood stands to reflect
fertile soils, and thus promoted the Lake Opeongo area as suitable for farming
settlameants.In 1836, the government passad lagislation to survey the Ottawa River and
the waterways of bordering lands (Wyatt 1571:22). David Thompson, the surveyor of the
Thompson River in British Columbla, examined the area from Panetanguishans on
Georglan Bay through the Muskoka-Madawaska ragion.

Prior to wishing to develop an overland route, Governor Simcoe established a naval base
al Penstanguishene. Construction was initiated in 1814 and completed in 1817, The
Penetanguishene Road, one of the main colonization reads of the county, completed in
1814, bacame the main supply route o the base. A base for over 40 years, it was re-
commissioned as a reformatory prison in 1858.

Skmcoe County Is location in the northwestern part of Southern Ontarlo. It is bordered to
the northeast by Ontario County, the southwest by Dufferin and Grey Counties, the south
by Peel County, the east by Lake Simcoe and York County and the northwest by Geargian
Bay. The total land area is 428,986 hectares of which approximately 713 is occupied by
tarm land (Hoffman et al. 1862:9). Originally, the county was composed of tha Townships
of Adjala, Essa, Flos, Innisfll, Matchedash, Medonte, Mono, Mulmur, Nottawasaga, North
Orillia, South Orillia, Oro, Sunnidale, Tay, Tecumsath, Tiny, Tossorontio, Viespra, and West
Gwillimbury (Figure 9). However, the Townships of Mono and Mulmur were incorporated
within Dutferin County.

Settement in Simcoe County bagan atter the War of 1812 when milltary authorities of
Canada decided to establish a fort near the mouth of the Nottawasaga River. This
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Figure 8. Bimcoe County.

decision was made due to continuing British/American hostilities and the British fear of
invasion by American soldiers. Many military strateglsts belleved that an American threat
was Imminent via Georglan Bay. Samuel S. Wilmot began o survey a road of
communication between Kempenfaldt Bay and Penstanguishene Harbour, portion lots for
settlement, and mark the outline of town piots at Kempenfaldt Bay and Penetanguishene
Harbour (Hunter 1998 [1909]:38),

Settlement of the county was slow. According to Hunter (1998{1902]:55), of all the land
granted to patent holders, less than one-tenth was occupled by actual settiers. The first
settlers were Donald Sutherland, James Wallace and John Armstrong who took up land in
the southern part of West Gwillimbury in 1815 (Belden 1575 [1881]:4). Along the
Penetanguishene Road, there was an influx of settlers after 1815 but the shores of Lake
Simcoe and Kempenfeldt Bay saw few sattlers before 1831,
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The first groups of satilers in Simcoe County are as follows (taken from Hunter 1998
[1908]:65):

1. French-Canadians, beginning In 1828, settied in Tiny and Tay Townships;

2. English, from northern counties of England baginning in 1820, settied in Oro and
Vespra (25 famifies at firat), Madonte, Tecumseth and West Gwillimbury Townships;

3. Scots, from Sutherlandshire al first and immigrants with Lord Selkirk's Red River
Colonists (17 famiiies) located here in 1819, settied in Wast Gwilimbury Township;

4. Scots, from |slay, Argyleshire baginning in 1832, settled in Oro and Noftawasaga
chisfiy, and a few families of the same migration into Medonte, Orillla and Sunnidale
Townships;

5. Scot, from Lanarkshire and Renfrewshire, via Dalhousie Township, Ont. in 1832 (many
Glasgow and Paisley weavers ware among thesa), settied in Innisfil and Essa

Townships; |

6. Scots, Dumiriesshire from 1832 to 1850, settlad in Innlsfil Township;

7. Irish, beginning in 1830, Protestants from Ulster, setled in West Gwillimbury,
Tecumseth, Innisfil, Essa and Tossoronotlo Townships;

B. Irish Palatines, about 10 families In 1831, settled in West GwilEmbury;

8. Irish Catholics, baginning in 1828, settlad in Adjala, Viespra, Flos, Medonte and
Mottawasaga Townships:

10.Irish, from Londonderry in 1850, settled in Innisfl Township;

11.Germans, bagun with 10 families in 1834, setlled in Nottawasaga Township;

12.African Americans, begun in 1828, settled In Oro (20 families) and Sunnidale
Townships, and;

13.First Nations, Ojibway (about 266), settled on Beausoliel and Christian lslands.

Elght eslonization roads encouraged the settlement of Simcoe County. The first
colonization road was the Nine-Mile Portage. This road ran from Kempenteldt Bay to
Willow Creek and it was once the most important road In the County. The road dates back
s a a poriage over which First Nations peoples used 1o carry thelr canoes (Hunter 1588
[1809]: 80, 81). During the War of 1812, the road was widened In order 1o allow supply
wagons 1o pass through, unrestrained by the forest wildemess, to deliver goods o
government posts on the upper lakes. This road was in active use until the construction of
the Northern Raillway, bullt to Collingwood In 1855 (Hunter 1988 [1808]: 82). The second
colonization road, the Penetanguishene Road, was opened by Dr. Dunlop in December
1814 and compilated In the fall of 1825 (Hunter 1898 [1808): 84, 86). This road linked
Kempenfeldt with Penetenguishene Bay. The third colonlzation road was the Coldwater
Road. Originally a long, First Nations portage from Lake Couchiching to Coldwater on
Matchedash Bay, it was cleared in 1830 and became a very important highway. The
Gloucester Road, the fourth colonization road, ran from Penetangulshene Road at
Hillsdale 1o Gloucestar Bay (part of Matchedash Bay). This road opened as a government
road in the winter of 1832-33 and became a the leading highway through Medonte in the
sarly years of its sattlement (Hunter 1898 [1808]): 81). The fifth colonization road was the
Sunnidale Road. The first Sunnidale Road was surveyed by Charles Rankin from
Kempanfeldi Bay to the Nottawasaga River, and through Sunnidale Township to
MNottawasaga Bay in 1833 (Hunter 1988 [1909]: 82). The First Ridge Road, the sixth
colonlzation road, traversed along the lakeshore through Oro Township from the haad of
Kempenfeldt Bay as far as Shanty Bay. It was one of the first roads in the district to be
opened for vehicular use (Hunter 1998[1909]:93). The saventh colonization of the County

THE CENTRAL ARCHAEOLOGY GROUP NG,

STAAE T AND STAGE 2 ARCHADLOGICAL ASSESSMENT

EaTHORPE PIT EXPANSION

LoT B0, Concessmn | WIPR, GEp, Townsor oF TNy, SIMCOF CousTy

8



==

was the Hawkestone Pioneer's Trall. This trall began at Hawkestone Creek and ran along
the waest side of the sireams. Hurter (1998 [1900]:94) states that First Nations peopie
used it from the eariiest times and it was also a deer path; then the sarly sattiars usad it
on their way o upper Oro from Hawkestone, where there was a landing place for
settlement purposes. Finally, the eight colonization road Is the Cantre Road, or Hurortario
Street, initially surveyed in 1837,

The Settiement of the Geographic Township of Tiny. On May 22, 1798, Governor John
Graves Simcoe entered Into an agresment with the Ofibway Nation o purchase lands for
Euro-Canadian settiement. The treaty, made at York, was followed by two additional

[Ireaties in 1815 and 1818. In all, the territory caded by the Ojibway encompassed all lands

from Lake Ontario to Georglan Bay. Three Ojibway Chiefs, Kinayblcoinini, Alsaince and
Misquuckkey, granted the tract as foliows (Hunter 1908:14);

Beginning at a stone boundsry, 20 chalns N., 81 degrees W. from the base of
Kempenfeldt Sand Point, (which |8 projecting about five and a hall chains Inio
Kempenteldt Bay), thence (i.e., from the stone boundary), M. 40 degrass W., thirty-aix
miles and & querter, more of less, o Lake Huron; then along the shore 1o the bottom of
Noltawaysague Bay, at the N.W. angle of the Penetangulshene purchasae; thence along
fta S.W. boundary seven and a hall miles to a small bay called Opetequoyawsing; thence
northerly out the bay, (le., out of Mud Lake), 1o Glocester or Sturgeon Bay and foliowing
the shore of Matchedash Bay sasterly, southerly and northerdy until & Intersects a line at
or near the mouth of & small lake, baing the western boundary of & purchase said to have
been made in 1785, thance south along the westerly imits of the sald purchase, elevan
miles, mode of less, untl it intersacts a line produced N. 78 degrees W. from the waters of
Laka Simcoe near the camying place hereinafier mentioned; then 8. 78 degrees E. along
the 8. boundary line of the sald last mentioned purchase to the waters of Lake Simcoe,
niar to & camying place leading to a small lake, distant about thres miles westedy: and
then southwastary along the nerthwestemn shore of Lake Simcoe and Kempanisldt Bay,
to the place of baginning, containing about 250,000 acres of land.

The Euro-Canadian settlement of Tiny Township followed the conclusion of the 1815

- Treaty and construction of the naval base at Penstanguishene (constructed between 1814

and 1817). The Penetanguishene Road, the firet overland road In the reglon, was bullt In
1814 with the express purpose of supplying the naval base and land along this road
opened for spitlement in 1818, Much of this land was granted to displaced United Empire
Loyalists (UEL's). However, a large percentage of those who received land granted in Tiny
Township never actually settied and worked the land. Thosa who did settle recelved
official land grants only after they cleared 10 acres, fenced their property, built their half of
the road and built g house within one menth of recelpt of certificats.

Many who settled along the Penetanguishene Road did so in anticlpation of selling their
wares to tha military, however, the route declined in status to that of a winter road and
many familias abandoned their land by 1840, Neverthalass, setflement did flourish along
tha Wya River. This source of power, in conjunction with the virgin inland forests, attracted
lumbermen and the construction of sawmilis began in earnest. Rall development
advanced In the lownship as a result of the lumber industry and settlement and as early
as 1836 rallway construction was aftempted. Over 40 years later, In 1878, the North
Simcoe Rallway was completed. Running from Barrie to Penatanguishene, this rall line
witnessed and transported the decimation of mass stands of pine and the population of
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Tiny Township exploded from 240 1o 4,786 (Township of Tiny Historical and Heritage
Committee 1905:8). The clearing of these forests were necessary to make way for
cultivation and agricultural ventures which are now commanplace throughout the
township.

Tiny Township (along with Tay and Flos) was so named after & pet dog of Sarah Maitland
(1782-1873), wite of Sir Peregrine Maitland (1777-1854), Lisutenant Govemnor of Upper
Canada (1818-1828). Tiny and Tay Townshipe were Initially united for municipal purposes
until 1869 whan Tiny Tewnship continued as ts own municipality (Figure 10). The
township was separated info five separate wards in 1884, each o be overseen by
councillors, the Deputy-Reeve and Reeve with all assoclated finances overseen by the
clerk. In the aarly twentisth century, 1819, the Milltary Reserve located within the north
portion of Tiny, was purchased. New roads were constructed and ots were offered for
sale. Growth continued exponentially in the township throughout the 1920s and extending
into the middle o late twentieth century. Roads were bullt or improved, fences, homes,
churches and schools erected and bridges constructed (Township of Tiny Historlcal and
Heritage Committes 18095:15).

The closes! village 1o the study area, Waverley, also known in the past as Bannister's
Comers, French's Comers and Victoria Hill, s located approximately 1,84 kilometres 1o
the scutheast, at the intersection of Simeoe County Road 27 and Penetanguishene Road
(Highway 83). The first settler, David Bannister, settied in this area in 1829. Although
Waverley was a thriving village In the late 1800s and early 1800s the population
dacreased significantly throughout the twentieth century.

Properiy History. The study area Is located on Lot 80, Concession 1 Wast of
Penatangulshene Aoad (WPR) in the Geographic Township of Tiny, Simcoe County

- (Figure 10). The following section provides a history of the Euro-Canadian development of

the project area and information about its occupants from the time it was first granted by
the Crown to the last half of the twentieth century when it was acquired by the present
proparty owners. This information is particularly helpiul because it assists in
reconstructing activitles that took place on or near the project area and how these
activities may have Influenced the potential for the discovery of extant archaeoclogical
resources. A variety of primary and secondary historical resources were consulted
Including land registry absiracts, tites and deeds, Census records, tax assessments and
birth, marrlage and death certificates.

North Half of Lot 80, Concession 1. Lot 1, compriging 100 acres, was granted by the
Crown to Joseph Ball on March 17, 1835. Unfortunately no information could be found on
Joseph Ball, but on March 20, 1835, he sold the property to Peter Richard of Toronta,
Later that autumn, Peter Richard sold the property to William Ross, also of Toronio, A
common nama, there were a number of individuals with the name of William Ross living in
Simcoe County during the middie of the nineteenth century. None were identified in the
Township of Tiny. Although the land registry abstracts for Lot 80 identified William Ross as

being from Toronto, this may simply have referred to his placs of birth or his residence at
the time of purchasa.
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Figure 10, Tiny Township.

In 16848, Willlam Ross ran into financlal trouble and the east 75 acres of the property,

which comprises the land from approximately the top of the ridge east towards the

concession road (Darby Road), was seized by the Simcoe County Sheriff and sold 1o
George Lount of Barrie to pay for overdue taxes. In 1858, the Simcoe County Sharit!
saized 20 acres In the remaining wes! portion of Lot B0 from Willlam Ross and sold it to
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George Lount to cover ovardue proparty texes. George Lount would acquire the last 5
acras from the Simcoe County Shariff in 1866. Al the tima that the east 75 acras was
acquired, there were was ona Individual by the name of George Lount living in Barrie.
Another George Lount would arrive In Barie from Ireland in 1871.

George Lount, who would eventually acquire all of the north half of Lot 80, was born on
February 2, 1799 in Catawissa, Columbla County, Pennsylvania in the United States.
George's father, Gabriel brought the family to Whitchurch Township in Upper Canada in
1811, Some of George Lount’s most notabla accomplishments include surveying the
townships of West Gwillimbury, Tecumseth, and Innisfil in 1818 and laying out the streels
of Bradiord In West Gwillimbury and giving them Duich names (Magel 1998:70). After
surveying a portion of Simeoe County, George settled in Holland Landing and operated a
store with his brother Samuel. Samuel would later, in 1837, participate In the failed
raballion with Willlam Lyon Mackenzie and was promptly executed for treason on April 12,
1838.

In 1822, George married Hannah Tyson in Holland Landing. On January 16, 1835,
Hannah died and shortly thereafter, George married once again, 1o Margaret Rannie
(Rennia), a Scottish migrant from Dunladin, County Fife. By 1861, according to the
Census, George was the Simcoe County Reglstrar, By this time, George had moved his
family to Barrie and lived in fown in a two storey brick house. George and Hannah's son,
William became a prominant figure in Canadian history, representing Simcoa North in the
firat Lagislative Assambly of Ontaro from September 3, 1867 to February 25, 1871. From
1896 to the following year he represented Toronto Centre in the House of Commaons and
in 1801 was named & justice in the Common Pleas of the High Court of Ontario. George
diad on May 8, 1874 and was buried In Holland Landing.

Although George Lount owned portion of Lot 80 since 1848 and the entire lot in 1866,
there Is no indication that he ever resided there or actively worked the land. Approximately
20 acres of the 100 acres of north half of Lot B0 is suitable for agricultura, the remailning
land being too sloped. Nonethelees, given his occupation as registrar, George Lount was
in a position to acquire vast amounts of inexpensive land in Simcoe County from property
owners whosa laxes were in arrears. In 1871 George sold the north half of Lot 80 to the
Township of Tiny for $312. In 1878, the property was sold to William Drinkle of the
Township of Tay for $1800.

According to the Census from 1871 to 1911, Willam Drinkle was a farmer bom in
December 1833, Willam would never live on Lot 80, instead he residéd at his nearby
homestead on Lot 78, Concession 1, in the Township of Tay, with his wife, Hannah, and
thalr children. Willlam Drinkle died of pneumonia on April 10, 1912. According to his death
certificate, prior to his death, he was fiving in Waverly. In 1883, Lot 80 was sold to Ell
Gregg (Grigg) of the Township of Tiny for $1100.

Born Im 1BE63, little information could be found on ER Gregg. EN, the son of Edward and
Hannah, marmied Elizabeth Jane Mayne on May 20, 1887 in Hillside. Willlam Drinkle was
idantified as a witness at the wedding. When the 1891 Census was conducted, Ell and
Elizabeth had one child, Mabel. According to the Farmers and Business Direclory for the
Countles of Haliburton, Peterboro, Simcoe, and Victoria, 1893, ER Gregg was residing and
farming on Lot 80, Concassion 1 in the Township of Tiny. The information was found in the
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Farmers and Business Directory for the Countles of Bruce, Grey, Muskoka, Ontario, and
Simecoe, 1896. On December 15, 1886, the north half of Lot 80 and an additional 5 acres
from elsewhere, was sold to Thomas H. Gregg, presumably a refative, but not tha son of
Eli, for $2000. By 1868, according to the Farmers and Business Directory for the Counties
of Bruce, Grey, and Simcoa, 1858, Eli Gregg had moved 1o Lot 78, Concession 1 in the
Townehip of Tiny and Thomas H. Gregg is listed as the occupant of Lot 80.

Thomas Gragg sold the property to Ernest Lamb in 1904, Ernast Lamb was born in 1874,
However, no other information could be found. In 1908, Ernast sold the north half of Lot B0
to his brother Henry M. Lamb for $1000 and an agreament o take over the mortgage of
the property. Henry Lamb was born in 1882. On November 12, 1819, Henry sold the
property to William E. Beacock for $2800. On Octobar 24, 1952, Willam's wite, Chariotta
sold the property fo the Direclor of the Vieterang® Land Act for $4700. The Director of the
Velarana' Land Act granted the property 1o Willlam Sibthorpe on January 21, 1977,
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Past Archaeological Research

Throughout the ninetsanth and early twentieth century, as Euro-Canadian settiers, miners,
and loggers panatrated the forests and lakes of the reglon, some would encounter and

5 collect evidence of past First Nations activities, in the form of slone and copper tools, or
organic paraphamalia. This practice continued well Into the twentieth century and e still
carriad out 1o this day by cottagers, tourists, and local residents.

The Ontario Ministry of Tourlem and Culture malntaing a databass of all known and
reglstered archasclogical sites In the Province, A search of the database with a two
kilometre buffer around the project imits Indicated that four archasologlical sites have
been registered. However, the paucity of reglstered sites does not necessarily reflect the
archaeotogical history of the area. Throughout the nineteerth and early twentieth cantury,
as Euro-Canadian settlers and loggers penetrated the forests and lakes of the reglon,
some would encounter and collect evidence of past First Nations activites, In the form of
stone and copper tools, or organic paraphernalla. This practice continuad well into the
twentieth century and is still carried out to this day by cottagers, lourists and local
residents, some who have amassed significant collections, In addition, given the cultural
davelopment of the reglon, including the discovery of undocumentad archaeological
resources, there (s undoubtably a significant potential for the discovery of more
archasclogical resourcas In the reglon.

Table 2. Reglstered archasological sites within a two kilomatre radius of the project area,

=3

Site Name Borden Designation Culture Parlod
Bucket BdGw-41 Iroquotan, Huron Woodland
. BdGw-42 Eurc-Canadlan Historic
Cunry BaGx-26 lroquoian, Huren Woodland

Bucket Site (BdGw-41). Conslsling of 180 artifacts, including ceramics, nalls, chert
debitage and faunal remains, this Huron site s situated on gently rolling terrain with well-
drained sandy solls (Dibb 2005).

B EE BEE

BdGw-42. This Euro-Canadian homestead site |s comprised of one artifact; an iron axe
head (Dibb 2005).

Curry Siie (BeGx-26). Determinad by Hunier [1969) to be & Huren cccupation, artifacts
recorded from Curry site include pottery (I.e., castellations, shoulders, rims, discs, pipas),
& calt, a beaver Incisor, a cranium fragment, brass kettle fragments and an iron ring.
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Aside from the presence of nearby registerad archaeological sites, other indicalors of the
presence of extant archasological remains are the proximity of historical plagues to the
study area that commemorate important events In a reglon's past, whather it be the birth
of an Individual, the site a specific baltle, or the construction of a unique bullding.
Generally, historical plaques and markers point to a specific locale on the landscape that
can ba visitad by the public. Althowgh plagues and markers may not be placed in the axact
location that the event has occurred, generally it is in close proximity, taking Inio
consideration access to the public. In Ontario, historical plaques may be erected by the
federal government through the Historic Sites and Monuments Board of Canada
(HSMBC), the Ontarlo Herltage Trust (OHT), and local heritage agencles or historical
socletles. Although thera are three historical plagues within the township, there are none
located within a two kilometre radius of the study area.
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Archaeological Potential

annwhﬁuﬂﬁmﬂhﬂhﬁhWMTﬂHﬁyﬂ
mmﬂumnummmmammmmmmmm
distance of certain natural and human-made features on the landscape, Natural features
Immﬂmmmmm.mwmmmmﬂn. lakes, rivers, streams,
and creeks), secondary water sources (i.e., intermittant streaams and creeks, springs,
marshes, and swamps), elevated landforme (L.e., eskers, drumniing, knolls, ridges, and
plateaws), especially in low and wet areas, distinctive land forms thal may have speclal or
spirituel significance (l.e., waterfalls, rock outcrops, cavems, rmounds, and promantories),
and soils sultable for habitation (l.e., pockats of well-drained sandy soll, especially near
areas of heavy soll or rocky ground), and cultivation (Le., ferte soil). Human-made
features that can influence potential are transportation routes (l.e., portages, trails, roads,
and raliways), early settlement (L., homestaads, schools, and sarly industry), and known
archaeoclogical sites.

In addition, faatures that are no longer presant on the landscape are also considered,
Irduﬁhnmﬂnwmdmmhllﬂmtndbyrlduuﬂpmmhmwm and
glacial shorelines (indicated by the the presence of ralsed sand or gravel baach ridges).
memeMuunhmmmm-ﬂmm
include cartaln species of plants for food and medicinal purposes, animals, induding their

ummmmmﬂmmmmmmﬂmm&m1
background study, especially the natural and human development of the project area,
there ara a number of aréas within the study area that possess a moderate to high
potential for the discovery of both extant First Nations and Euro-Canadian archasological
remains (Figura 11). Dmnhmdhyamﬂrﬂma.ﬂmmﬂymlhwwa
glacial outwash from a stream of river during the melting and recession at the end of the
Wisconsin mpmd.mmﬁ,ummmmmummmmm
Palaso-Indian cultural resources. These well-drained sandy solls atop elevated terraln
ware also used by First Nations throughout human history In Ontario as hebitation sies
prior 1o the amival of Europeans, as evidence by the Buckel She (BdGw-41) 1o the south.

THE CENTRAL ARCHAEOLOG ¥ (FROLS [N,

STAGE 1 it STARE 2 ARCHARCL OGICAL ASEESSUENT

S8 THORPE PiT Exmavion

Lordn, Cowcesnon | WRRA, GEo. Townswr oF THY, 58008 CounTY 28



=1

= =]

ey

. __ &

= E=

The potential for the discovery of extant Euro-Canadian archasological resources is
limited to the proximity of concession roads built In the nineteenth century. A portion of the
westem limit of the subject property Is bordered by Marshall Road, which now veers 1o the
wasl at the northwest comer of Lot 80 to form Carpenter Side Road and connect with
Basaline Road. Howaver, during the nineteenth century, Marshall Road would have
continued through to French Road to the south to form a route between the concessions.
Along the east boundary of the study area is Darby Road. Prior 1o ite diversion further to
the east, Darby Road formed part of the route between Penetanguishena to the north and
Waverley and the communities to the south. Although a roed allowance separates Lot 80
and Lot 81, a road was never constructad,

Portions of the study area possess slopes that are greater than 20 degrees and therelora
have little 1o no archaeological potential. The siopad areas formed the limits of the
outwash at the conclusion of the last glacial period and today are the target for aggregate
axtraction.
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Stage 2 Methods and Results

Methods. A Stage 2 archasological property survey was undertaken between August 20
and August 27, 2010, Tha Stage 2 assessment of the project area entailed shoval 18sting
of specific portions of the proparty which were determined to retain modarate 1o high

potantial for archasological resources.

A conventional test pit survey Invoives excavating shoval-sized pits, al least 30 cm in
diameter, into the first 5 cm of subsoll o examine the pit for stratigraphy, cuttural features,
or avidence of fill. All solls are screened through mesh no greater than 6 mm and upon
completion all test pits are backfilled. if archasologlcal rescurces are found within a test pit
in an area designated to have moderate 1o high potentlal, the survey continues ata 5
metre or 2.5 metre interval to determine whether there are further positive test pits. If
sufficient archaeclogical resources are ancountered, than at Stage 3 assessment |s
recommendad.

If insutficlent archasological resources are encountered, the distance between test pits is
reduced to 2.5 m within a radius of 5 metres around the initial positive test pit. In addition,
a 1 metre x 1 metre test unit may be excavated around the Inital positive test pit. H it is
part of a larger concentration then a Stage 3 assessment ks genarally recommended.
Irmegardless of the strategy employed, all test pits are backfilled to grade 1o dvold the
potential of a tripping hazard.

i positive test pits are encountered during the survey they are assigned an unique
number and its location recorded 1o less than 30 cm accuracy In the fleld using a Trimble
XH handheld GPS and Humricane Antenna. The co-ordinates are corrected using
Automatic H-Star Camier and Code Processing in the Trimble Pathfinder and the following
GPS base stations: 1) CORS, Port Weller, ON; 2) SOPAC, Algonguin, daily; 3) CORS,
Kingston, ON; 4) CORS, Capac, Ml and; 5) CORS, Parry Sound, ON.

Any artifacts recovered from the project area will be bagged, cleaned with water and
brush, dried numbered, analyzed, and Inventoried. Using the Soclety for Historical
Archaeclogy Standards and Guidelines for the Curation of Archaeological Coltections
(1993), all artifacts are stored in protected containers In a temperature (20°C) and
humidity (50%) controlled storage room at the main office of The Central Archasclogy
Group Inc., in L'Amable, Ontario. All noles and photographs produced during the course of
the project are catalogued and securely stored. Excavation notes are taken in an all
weather journal and colour phetographs are taken using an Olympus E-500 SLR digital

Results. See Figure 12 for the results of the Stage 2 archasological propaerty survey on
the following page.
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Conclusions and Recommendations

Thaﬂmmlﬂmhuuhwﬁrﬂmmmmmwmﬂinrmm.
E memnﬂmurﬁuEHﬁmhmﬁmam|WMH2

Emdmﬂwrmﬂsniﬂu&lun 1 wmammmwmt. the
recommendations are wmuhmmummmmnmﬁmﬂnm
Culture and Denlis Simmons, w“mmmuhyﬂummm-ycﬂ
Tourism and Cultura:

g uﬂuﬂlnuaﬂmhuudmddnmmwmmﬂmm
survey activities. Consequantly, significant pre-contact and historic First Nations or

E historic Euro-Canadian archasaloglcal sites are unilkely to be found In any undisturbed
gtm;dﬂﬁnﬂuupmﬁunmﬂnmhm.m“mﬁgm-mmmm
mmwmhmmthmmnhmwmm

m property be cleared of archasclogical concerms,
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The Stage 1 and Stage 2 archasological assessment was conducted under the project
and fleld direction of Darek Paauw, under professional licence P272 issued to Mr. Paauw
In accordance with the Ontarlo Heritage Act (R.S.0. 1980). The archaeological
assesament was undartaken according to the requirements of the Ontarlo Heritage Act
(R.5.0. 1890), the Environmantal Assessment Act (R.S.0. 1890), the Ontario Ministry of
cdmssiumm and Guidelines for Consultant Archaeologlsts (2010), and the Pianning
Act (R.5.0. 1880). ;

THE CENTRAL ARCHAEDLOGY (RROLP NG,
STAIE | AND STHAE F ARSHAEOL DGICAL ASSESSARENT
SaTvoar P Exransion

Lor 88, Concession | WPH, Giro, Towsawre or Tivr, S8a008 ColnTy



k

1' "IF

=5

References

Anglers, Bradford
18678  Fleld Gulde to Madicinal Wild Plants. Stackpole Books, Mechanicsburg.

Boyle, David
1887 Ontaro Mounds. Annual Archaeological Report for Ontario, 1886-97:14-37.

Chapman D.F. and L.J. Putnam .
1866  The Physiography of Southern Ontarfo, Second Edition. Ontario Research Branch
Foundation. University of Toronto Press, Toronto.

Damkjar, Eric
1!!0 mmmwmwmmmwmw
Owccasional Papars In Northeastemn Archasology No. 2, Copatown Press, Dundas.

Dibb, Gordon
2005 A Stage 1-2A.A. of the Sarfeant Pit Propased for Part Lot 78 N and 78,
Concession 1 and Part Lot 79, Concession 2, Tiny Township, County of Simecos,

Elils, Christopher, Gary Foster and Michasl Jasmar
1880a A Praliminary Evaluation of Native Cultural Hisfory of the Trent-Severn Watarway:
Raport to Canadian Parks Sanvica, Ottawa.

Ellis, Christophar, lan Kenyon and Michasel Spance
1680b The Archale. In The Archasology of Scuthem Ontario to A.D. 1650, edited by C.
Ellis and N. Ferris, pp. 85-124, Occaslonal Publication of the London Chapler of

the Ontarlo Archasclogical Soclety, London.

Finlayson, Willlam D.

1885  The 1975 and 1978 Rescus Excavations of the Draper Site: Infroduction and
Ssttlement Pattern. National Museum of Man, Archasology Survey of Canada,
Mercury Serles Paper 130.

Government of Ontario
1880 The Envionmental Assessment Act, R.5.0. 1890. Queen's Printer, Toronto.
1880 The Heritage Act, R.5.0. 18580. Queen's Printer, Toronto.

Heldenrich, Conrad
1871  Huronia - A Hislory and Geography of the Huron Indlans, 1600-1650. McClelland
and Stewart, Toronio,

_ S O EE

THE CENTRAL ARGHAEOLOGY GRoue ING.

STAGE 1 AND STASE 2 ARCHAEOLOGICAL ALSEREUENT

SETHOAPE PrT Exrnsion

Lo iy, Concrnscn | WPR, Goo, Towwsar o Ty, Scos CosTy 33



————

e

B e Bl e e jom—y

Hessal, P.
1983  The Algonkin Nation: The Algonking of the Ottawa Valley, A Historical Outfine.
Kichesippl Books, Amprior.

Hoffman, D.W., R.E. Wickiund and N.R. Richards

1862  Soil Survey of Simcoe County, Ontario. Report No. 29 of the Ontario Soll Survey.
Research Branch, Canada Department of Agriculture and the Ontarlo Agricultural
Collage.

Hunter, Andrew Fradarick
1808 A History of Simcoe Counly: volume 1, Its Public Affains. The County Council,
Barrie.

Jackson, Lawrence
1980  Dawson Creek. An Early Woodland Site In South-Central Ontario. Ontario
Archaeology 33:13-32.

Johnston, Richard
1868  The Archasology of Rice Lake, Ontario. Anthropologlcal Paper 18, National
Museum of Canada, Ontario,

Jury, Wilfrid and Elsie McLaod Jury
1854  Sainte-Marle Among the Hurons. Oxford University Press, Toronto.

Kershaw, Linda ,
2001  Trees of Ontario. Lone Fine Publishing, Edmanton,
2002  Owntaro Widfowers: 101 Wayside Flowers. Lone Pine Publishing, Edmanton.

Leahay, A.

1861 The Solls of Canada from a Pedological Viewpoint. In Soills in Canada;
Geological, Pedalogical, and Engineering Studies, edited by Robert F. Legget, pp.
147-157. The Royal Society of Canada, Special Publications No. 3. University of
Toronlo Presas, Toronto.

MacKinnon, Andrew, Linda Kershaw, John Thor Amason, Patrick Owen, Amanda Karst,
and Flona Kamersley-Chambears
2009 Edible & Medicinal Plants of Canada. Lone Pine Publishing, Edmonton.

Magel, Ralph
1688 200 Years Younge: A Hislory. Natural Heritage Books, Toronto,

Moerman, Danilel E.
1888  Native American Ethnobotany. Timber Press, Inc., Portland.

Ramsden, Carole Nasmith
1988  The Kirche Site: A 16th Century Huron Village in the Uipper Trent Vailey.
Cceaslonal Papers in Northeastern Archaeology No. 1, Copetown Press, Dundas.

THE CENTRAL ARCHARY DAY (R0UP NG,

STSE T AMD STAGE B ARDHAED DAL ASSERSLEWT
SETHOARE FiT Exmansion

Lo 80, Concrssiow T WPR, Geo. Tonwarir oF TinT, Sarcoe CounTyY



—
=

3 B B =D

]

Ramsdan, Patar

1880 The Hurons: Archasology and Cultura History. In The Archasology of Southem
Ontario fo A.D. 1650, edited by C. Ellis and N. Ferris, pp. 361-384. Occaslonal
Publications of the London Chapter of the Ontario Archasologlcal Soclety,
London.

Sotlety for Historlcal Archasblogy
1883 Standards and Guidelines for the Curation of Archaeclogical Collections.

Electronic document, httpi’www.sha.omg/research_resources’
curation_standards.him, accessed May B, 2008,

Spence, Michael and J.R. Harper
1868 The Cameron’s Point Sife. Royal Ontarlo Museum of Art and Archaeclogy
Occaslonal Paper 12, Toronto.

Spence, Michasl, Robert Pihl and Carl Murphy

1880 Cullural Complexes of the Early and Middle Woodland Periods. In The
Archasology of Southern Ontario fo A.D. 1650, edited by C. Elis and N. Ferrls,
pp. 125-170. Occaslonal Publications of the London Chapter of the Ontarlo

Archasological Soclety, London.

Stothers, David
1874  The East Sugar Island Burial Mound. Pennsylvania Archaeologist 44:20-25.

Sutton, Richard
1880  Hidden Amidst the Hills: Middle and Lafte froguoian Occupations in the Middle
Trent Valiey. Occaslonal Papers in Northeastern Archaeology No. 3, Copatown

Press, Dundas.

Trigger, Bruce

1976  The Children of Aataensic: A History of the Huron Peopile fo.1660. McGill-Queen's
University Press, Montreal.

2000  The Children of Aataansic: A History of the Huron People to 1660. Carleton Library
Serles 185. McGlI-Quean's University Prass, Montreal and Kingston.

Vogel, Virgll J. .
1870 American indlan Medicine. The Civillzation of the American Indian Series, Volume
85, University of Oklahoma Preas, Norman.

Warrick, Gary
1984  Reconsfructing Ontario Iroguois Village Organization. National Museum of Man,
Archaeological Survey of Canada, Mercury Series Paper No. 124:1-180.

Watt, D.
1971 A History of the Origins and Development of Algonguin Park. Algonquin Park Task
Force, Unpublished Background Paper.

THE CENTRAL ARCHAEDLOG Y RO NG,

STASE | AND STAGE 2 ARCHAFDLDGICAL ASSESSVENT
SBTHORPE PIT Exmieson

Lar ), Covcdion | WPR, Gia. Towsdne® oF T, Smcor Counry a5



e
= e B =E OE ..

| B I 1 ! e O S .

Appendix A - Glossary of Terms

THE CENTRAL ARCHAEOLOGY GROUP iNc.
STAGE 1 AND STASE 2 AROHAEDL DGICAL ASSESSMENT
S Thores PIT EXFaNSION

Lo 80, Concesson T WPR, Gea, Townsne oF TNy, SMcoe CousTy



- . — |

=5

Archasology - s the sclentific study of the physical svidence of past human socielies
racovered through excavation.

Archasologlcal Site - Is a place in which physical evidence of past human activity ls
preserved and which has been, or may be, investigated using the discipline of archasology.

Archalc Perlod - in Ontario Is charagterized by the appearance of ground stone tools,
notched or stemmed projectile points, the predominance of less exiensively flaked slone
tools, Increased rellance on local chert resources, a lack of pottery and smoldng pipes, and
an Increase In tha numbers and slzes of siea.

Atlatl - a toal used to throw spears faster and with more accuracy. It conslsts of a short pole
with & handle at one and and a hook for engaging the spear in the other.

Bloturbation - resulis In changss to the nature, form, and arrangement of archasological
deposits and sediments as a result of blologlcal activity In the ground. This includas root
action, anlmal activity, and the degeneration of organle matter.

' BP - Before Present. Years before present (1850), used in dating sltes and/or artifacts from

an archasological site,

Burial Goods or Burial Paraphamalia - fems Interred with an Individual (or group) burial
that may give cluas to thelr social and/or economiz andfor political position within their culture,

Chert - Is a fine-grained, sedimentary rock, similar o fint. In antiquity, chert was one of the
universally preferred materials for making stone tools.

Contact Period - refers to the period when European and First Nations paoples were first
axposad to one another. In Ontario from 450 BP to 200 BR.

Cultural Resources - are sies, structures, landscapes, and objects of particular importanca
to & culture or commLnity.

Diagnostic - a distinguishing characteristic sarving to identity or datermine the artifact.
Disarticulated - this occurs when bones are found ihparntad at the joints.
Disturbed - refers to a study area that has recently been excavated or alterad.

Environmental Assessment Act - sets up a process for reviewing the amvironmental impact
of proposad activities prior to the granting of government funds.

Excavation - s the systematic digging and recording of an archasological site.
Flake - is a fragment of stone removed from a core or from another flake.

Feature - |s a collection of ane or more contexts reprasenting some human activity that has a
vartical charactaristic to it in relation 1o site stratigraphy.
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Fluted - grooved or channeled. A fluted point is a projectile point which has had one or more
long thinning flakes removed from the base along one or bath faces.

Ground Stone - s a stone artifact shaped by sawing, grinding, andlor pollahing with abrasive
materials.

Hllhthlrhd-’l'lapnrhdwhmwﬂttunmmrﬂahmmnmuhhhﬂﬂuEFhﬂmpmum,

Lanceolate - lance-shaped, much longer that wide, widenad at or above the base and
opening to the apax.

Lithle - stone, or made of stone.

Malze - also known as com, Is a cereal grain that was first domesticated in Masoamerica and
then spread throughout the American continents.

Mitigation - measures undertaken to limit the advarse Impact of construction methods on
archaeologlcal sites or cultural resources.

DOchre - used as a natural plgment, colour Is commanly reddish-brown to yallow.

Ontarlo Herltage Act - allows municipalities and the provinclal govemment o designate
Indlvidual properties and districts in Ontario as being of cultural hertage value or Interest.

Palec-Indlan Period - first evidence of human occupation In Ontario. This period Is
characterized by family groups hunting large game and seasonal occupation along lakeshore
anvironmeants, 11,500 - 6000 BP.

Projectlle Point - is an artifact used to tip an arrow, atlatl dart, spear, or harpoon. Usually
made of chipped or ground stone, however, some are also mada of copper.

Stage 1 Background Study - The purpose of a Stage 1 assassmant Is fo investigate the
cultural land use, archasological history, and the presant coriditions of a proparty. The
malority of the Stage 1 process is conducted in the office and Involves the axamination of
records such as historic settlement maps, land titles, and documents, historical land use and
ownership records, primary and secondary documentary sources, and the Minlstry of
Culture's archaeological site database. The study may also involve Interviews with
Indlviduals who can provide information about the property and consultation with local First
Nations communities. The background study is followed by & property inspection to examine
geography, topography and current conditions, and to determine the potential for
archasological resources. Stage 1 background research ks usually completed in conjunction
with a Stage 2 property survey,

Stage 2 Property Survey - The Stage 2 property survey involves the documentation of
archasological resources by collecting artifacts and mapping cultural features, Depending on
the nature of the property environment, two methods are employed In the survey: 1)
pedestrian survey, and; 2) test-plt survay.

Strata - are layers of rock, soil, cultural material, ato. with internally consistent characterlstics
that distinguish contiguous.
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Stratigraphy - the layering of deposita an archasclogical sites. Cultural remains and natural
sediments become burled over time, forming strata.

Subsistence - oblalning food and shelter necessary to support life.

Survey - is used to accurately determine the terrestrial or three-dimensional space position of
peints and the distances and angles betwean them.,

Woodland Perlod - |s a period of fime following the Archaic Period, From 3000 BF to 300
BP. It Is sub-divided Into Early, Middle, and Late.
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